
 REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
MEETING AGENDA  

WEDNESDAY, JANUARY 9, 2019 
 

Closed Session – 6:00 PM 
Regular Meeting - 6:30 PM 

 
City Hall – Beryl P. Robinson, Jr. Conference Room 

317 Broad Street, Nevada City, CA  95959 
 

MISSION STATEMENT  
The City of Nevada City is dedicated to preserving and enhancing its small town  

character and historical architecture while providing quality public services for our 
 current and future residents, businesses and visitors. 

 
 

David Parker, Mayor 
Duane Strawser, Council Member   Reinette Senum, Vice Mayor 

      Erin Minett, Council Member   Valerie Moberg, Council Member 
 

The City Council welcomes you to its meetings which are scheduled at 6:30 PM on the 2nd and 4th Wednesdays of each 
month.  Your interest is encouraged and appreciated.  This meeting is recorded on DVD and is televised on local public 
television Channel 17.  Other special accommodations may be requested to the City Clerk 72 hours in advance of the 
meeting.  Please turn off all cell phones or similar devices.  Action may be taken on any agenda item.  Agenda notices are 
available at City Hall.  Materials related to an item on this Agenda submitted to the Council after distribution of the agenda 
packet are available for public inspection in the City Hall at 317 Broad Street, Nevada City, CA during normal business 
hours. 
 
ANY MEMBER OF THE PUBLIC DESIRING TO ADDRESS THE COUNCIL ON ANY ITEM ON THIS 
AGENDA: After receiving recognition from the Mayor, give your name and address, and then your comments or questions. 
Please direct your remarks to the Councilmembers. In order that all interested parties have an opportunity to speak, please 
limit your comments to the specific item under discussion. All citizens will be afforded an opportunity to speak, consistent 
with their Constitutional rights. Time limits shall be at the Mayor's discretion. 
IF YOU CHALLENGE the Council's decision on any matter in court, you will be limited to raising only those issues you or 
someone else raised at the meeting or Public Hearing described on this agenda, or in written correspondence delivered to the 
City Council at, or prior to, the meeting or Public Hearing. 
 
CLOSED SESSION – 6:10 PM 
 
Under Government Code Section 54950 members of the public are entitled to comment on the closed session agenda 
before the Council goes into closed session. 
 

1. Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957(b)(1) a closed session is requested with City 
Manager Catrina Olson, the and Interim Police Chief James Leal on a personnel matter related to 
the Police Department open Police Officer positions. 
 

2. Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.8 a closed session is requested with negotiators 
City Manager, Catrina Olson and City Attorney, Hal DeGraw to discuss a possible purchase of 
real estate located at 377 Wyoming Road using grant funds in a potential joint application with 
the City of Nevada City and Sierra Streams Institute. 

 
 
 

 
 



REGULAR MEETING – 6:30 PM - Call to Order 
 
Roll Call:  Mayor Parker, Vice Mayor Senum, Moberg, Minett & Strawser  
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  
 
PROCLAMATIONS:   
 
PRESENTATIONS:  
 
BUSINESS FROM THE FLOOR 
 

1. PUBLIC COMMENT 
Under Government Code Section 54954.3, members of the public are entitled to address the City 
Council concerning any item within the Nevada City Council’s subject matter jurisdiction. 
Comments on items NOT ON THE AGENDA are welcome at this time.  Normally, public 
comments are limited to no more than three minutes each.  Except for certain specific 
exceptions, the City Council is prohibited from discussing or taking action on any item not 
appearing on the posted agenda. 

 
2. COUNCIL MEMBERS REQUESTED ITEMS AND COMMITTEE REPORTS: 

 
3. CONSENT ITEMS: 

All matters listed under the Consent Calendar are to be considered routine by the City Council 
and will be enacted by one motion in the form listed.  There will be no separate discussion of 
these items unless, before the City Council votes on the motion to adopt, members of the 
Council, City staff or the public request specific items to be removed from the Consent 
Calendar for separate discussion and action. 

 
A. Subject: Accounts Payable Activity Report – December 2018 

Recommendation: Receive and file. 
 

B. Subject: Side Letter No. 1 to The Nevada County Professional Firefighters, Local 3800 
Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) dated July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2021 – 
Rescinding and Replacing the Section 12 HOLIDAYS Policy 
Recommendation:  Review and approve Side Letter No. 1 to The Nevada County 
Professional Firefighters, Local 3800 Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) dated July 1, 
2018 through June 30, 2021 – Rescinding and Replacing the Section 12 HOLIDAYS Policy. 
 

4. APPROVAL OF ACTION MINUTES: 
 
A. City Council Meeting – December 12, 2018 

 
 
 
 
 
 



5. DEPARTMENT REQUESTED ACTION ITEMS AND UPDATE REPORTS: 
 

A. Subject: Vegetation Management on City Owned Properties – Prescriptive Grazing “Goat 
Brigade” Quotes and Update on Pioneer Project 
Recommendation: Review quotes, the Pioneer Project and progress made regarding 
vegetation management on City owned properties with the use of the “Goat Brigade” for 
prescriptive grazing and recommend next steps on presented project locations. 
 

B. Subject: :  County of Nevada Parks and Recreation Consolidation Feasibility Study 
Recommendation: Provide staff direction regarding participation in the study. 
 

C. Subject: Sugarloaf Trail Progress Update  
Recommendation: Receive and File. 
 

6. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
 

7. OLD BUSINESS: 
 

A. Subject: Provide Staff Direction Regarding how to Proceed with Staff Suggested Cannabis 
Ordinance Amendment in Adding a Moratorium on the Issuance of any Additional Cannabis 
Permits Associated with the Volatile Extraction Method. 
Recommendation: Provide staff direction regarding proceeding in adding an amendment to 
the Cannabis Ordinance associated to placing a moratorium on issuing any further cannabis 
permits to volatile extraction method manufacturing applicants. 
 

B. Subject: An Ordinance of the City of Nevada City Adding Chapter 8.06 of the Nevada City 
Municipal Code Addressing Unlawful Panhandling 
Recommendation: Waive reading of Ordinance, read title only and introduce for second 
reading and final adoption of the Ordinance. 
 

C. Subject: Designated Smoking Areas Pilot Project 
Recommendation: Provide staff direction in proceeding with a designated smoking area 
six-month pilot project within the Historic District, as determined by City Council. 
 

D. Subject: An Ordinance Deleting Subsection B.4 of Section 9.22.120 of Chapter 9.22. of the 
Nevada City Municipal Code Relating to Labeling of the Products of Cannabis 
Manufacturing Businesses 
Recommendation: Waive reading of the Ordinance, read title only and introduce for a first 
reading. 
 

8. NEW BUSINESS: 

9. CORRESPONDENCE: 
  

10.  ANNOUNCEMENTS: 
 

11.  CITY MANAGER’S REPORT: 
 

12.  ADJOURNMENT 



Certification of Posting of Agenda 
I, Loree’ McCay, Administrative Services Manager/Deputy City Clerk for the City of Nevada City, declare that 
the foregoing agenda for the January 9th, 2019 Regular Meeting of the Nevada City City Council was posted 
January 4th,   2019 at the entrance of City Hall. The agenda is also posted on the City’s website 
www.nevadacityca.gov. 
 
Signed January 4th, 2019, at Nevada City, California 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Loree’ McCay, Administrative Services Manager/Deputy City Clerk  
 
 
 
 
____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

CITY OF NEVADA CITY 
City Council 

Long Range Calendar 
 
January 9, 2019  Regular Council Meeting 
January 21, 2019 Martin Luther King Holiday 
January 23, 2019 Regular Council Meeting 
February 13, 2019 Regular Council Meeting 
February 18, 2019 Presidents Holiday 
February 27, 2019 Regular Council Meeting 
 
 
 
NOTE:  This list is for planning purposes; items may shift depending on timing and capacity of a meeting. 
 
NOTICE:  As presiding officer, the Mayor has the authority to preserve order at all City Council meetings, to 
remove or cause the removal of any person from any such meeting for disorderly conduct, or for making 
personal, impertinent, or slanderous remarks, using profanity, or becoming boisterous, threatening or personally 
abusive while addressing said Council and to enforce the rules of the Council. 

http://www.nevadacityca.gov/


REPORT TO CITY COUNCIL     City of Nevada City 
          317 Broad Street 
          Nevada City CA 95959 
January 9, 2019        www.nevadacityca.gov 
___________________________________________________________________________ 
 
TITLE:   Accounts Payable Activity Report – December 2018 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Receive and file.  
 
CONTACT:  Loree’ McCay, Administrative Services Manager 
 
BACKGROUND / DISCUSSION: The attached Accounts Payable Activity Report includes all 
the cash disbursements associated with the City-Wide Expenditures for the month of 
December 2018. 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL CONSIDERATIONS:   Not applicable.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Varies Monthly.  
 
ATTACHMENTS:  
 Accounts Payable Activity Report – December 2018 

http://www.nevadacityca.gov/
















REPORT TO CITY COUNCIL     City of Nevada City 
          317 Broad Street 
          Nevada City, CA  95959 
January 9, 2019                 www.nevadacityca.gov 
___________________________________________________________________________ 
 
TITLE: Side Letter No. 1 to The Nevada County Professional Firefighters, Local 3800 
Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) dated July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2021 – 
Rescinding and Replacing the Section 12 HOLIDAYS Policy 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Review and approve Side Letter No. 1 to The Nevada County 
Professional Firefighters, Local 3800 Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) dated July 1, 
2018 through June 30, 2021 – Rescinding and Replacing the Section 12 HOLIDAYS Policy. 
 
CONTACT:  Catrina Olson, City Manager 
 
BACKGROUND / DISCUSSION:  
During the labor negotiations between the City of Nevada City and the Nevada County 
Professional Firefighters, Local 3800, the firefighters wanted to revise the Holidays Section to 
allow for a payout upon separation of employment. The revision was made to allow for this and 
the holiday leave was changed to an accrual method.  After approval, the accrual method was 
unclear and problematic and required revisions.  The holiday leave was revised to include a 
provision to allow for a payout upon separation of employment.    
 
A side letter containing the revised policy was written and approved by the Fire Department. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
There is no fiscal impact.   
 
ATTACHMENTS:  
 Side Letter No. 1 to the Nevada County Professional Firefighters, Local 3800 MOU 

 

http://www.nevadacityca.gov/


 

CITY OF NEVADA CITY  
SIDE LETTER NO. 1 TO MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 

 
 
TO:  Catrina Olson, City Manager 
 
FROM: Dan Paulus, Fire Captain – Shop Steward, Nevada County Professional Firefighters, IAFF 

Local 3800 
 

SUBJECT:   Amendment No. 1 to the Nevada County Professional Firefighters, Local 3800 
Memorandum of Understanding dated July1, 2018 through June 30th, 2021. 

 
EFFECTIVE DATE:   July 1, 2018 
 
The Department and City have agreed to rescind and replace the Section 12. HOLIDAYS policy to read 
as follows:  
 
The employee shall be compensated for the 14 paid Holidays (112 hours) as follows: 
 
Employee holiday leave credit shall be received in two lump sum credits during the course of the 
calendar year.  Firefighters will receive 56 hours of holiday leave credit on January 1st and July 1st.   
 
Available holiday leave credit may be used during the calendar year as received. Holiday leave hours will 
be scheduled in the same manner as vacation.  
 
Employees may request a lump sum payment of up to 56 hours of unused Holiday leave once during the 
calendar year. The employee will provide the City a letter of intent to sell back up to 56 holiday leave 
hours prior to the end of November. The payment of the requested hours will occur on a regular payroll 
cycle on the last check date of December.  All remaining hours after payout will be forfeited during this 
same pay period.     
 
New employees will receive pro-rated holiday leave credit on the first paycheck calculated as follows: 
4.31 x (# pay periods remaining in 6 month period after hire date)  
 
Employees separated from employment prior to December 31st shall receive a maximum payout of up to 
56 hours for any unused Holiday leave credit.  
 
 
 
 

______________________________   _______________ 
Catrina Olson, City Manager     Date 

 
______________________________   _______________ 
Loree’ McCay, Administrative Services Manager  Date 

 
______________________________   _______________ 
Dan Paulus, Fire Captain       Date 

 
______________________________   _______________ 
Michael Chau, Firefighter     Date 
 
______________________________   _______________ 
Clayton Thomas, President Local 3800   Date 



1 

[Type here] 
 

 

CITY OF NEVADA CITY 
ACTION MINUTES 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING OF DECEMBER 12, 2018 
 

 
NOTE:  This meeting is available to view on the City’s website www.nevadacityca.gov – Go to Quick Links 
and Click on Agendas & Minutes and find the Archived Videos in the middle of the screen.  Select the 
meeting date and Click on Video to watch the meeting.  For website assistance, please contact Loree’ 
McCay, Deputy City Clerk at (530) 265-2496, ext 134. 
  
-  City Council Meetings are available on DVD.  To order, contact City Hall - cost is $15.00 per DVD.   
-  Closed Session Meetings are not recorded. 
 
 
CLOSED SESSION – 6:00 PM 
 

1. Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957(b)(1) a closed session is requested 
with City Manager Catrina Olson, the and City Attorney Hal DeGraw on a 
personnel matter related to the Police Chief position. 

Action:  Report out of closed session, staff to proceed as directed. 
 
REGULAR MEETING – 6:30 PM - Call to Order 
 
Roll Call:    Present:  Mayor Parker, Vice Mayor Senum, Council Members Minett, 

Strawser, and Moberg  
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE    

 
PROCLAMATIONS:  None 
 
PRESENTATIONS:   
 

A. Subject:  Introduction of New Firefighter – Alex Otani was moved to a future 
agenda. 
 

BUSINESS FROM THE FLOOR 
 
1. PUBLIC COMMENT (Per Government Code Section 54954.3) 
Please refer to the meeting video on the City’s website at www.nevadacityca.gov. 
 
2. COUNCIL MEMBERS REQUESTED ITEMS AND COMMITTEE REPORTS: 
 
3.  CONSENT ITEMS: 

 
A. Subject:  Fire Activity Report – November 2018 

Recommendation: Receive and file. 
 

B. Subject:  Accounts Payable Activity Report – November 2018 
Recommendation:  Receive and file. 

 

http://www.nevadacityca.gov/
http://www.nevadacityca.gov/


2 

[Type here] 
 

 

C. Subject:  Review and Approve the Purchase of Radar Units for Installation in 
Patrol Vehicles and a Speed Monitoring Mobile Radar Trailer Recommendation:  
Approve the request for the Police Department to purchase radar units for 
installation in the patrol vehicles and a speed monitoring mobile radar trailer. 
 

D. Subject:  Nevada City Chinese New Year Parade and Festival Street Closure 
Request  
Recommendation: Review and authorize Nevada City Chinese New Year Parade 
and Festival street closure request per application. 
 

E. Subject:  Bear Yuba Land Trust (BYLT) Trail Maintenance Contract 
Recommendation: Pass Resolution 2018-72 and authorize the City Manager to 
sign the 2019 Trail Maintenance Contract. 
 

F. Subject:  Bench and Plaque for Placement on Hirschman Trail 
Recommendation:  Approve the requested plaque wording. 
 

G. Subject:  Award of Contract for Pioneer Park Tennis Court Bathroom 
Improvements in Nevada City  
Recommendation:  Pass Resolution 2018-73 awarding a contract to Barsotti 
Contracting in the amount of $65,200.00 plus $7,000.00 in contingencies for 
Pioneer Park Tennis Court Bathroom Improvements in Nevada City and authorize 
the Mayor to sign. 
 

H. Subject:  Authorization for Procurement for Nevada City Water Plant Chlorine 
System  
Recommendation:  Authorize the City Manager or designee to sign purchase 
orders for the procurement of Nevada City Water Plant Chlorine System in the 
amount of $31,706.20 plus $2,000.00 in contingencies for Nevada City Water Plant 
Chlorine System in Nevada City. 

 
Action: Motion by Strawser, seconded by Senum to approve Consent Items 3A-3C and 3E-
3H as presented.  Item 3D was pulled to request applicant to remind affected businesses of 
the parade date.  Applicant agreed to send a flyer.   
(Approved 5 – 0) 
 
Motion by Strawser, seconded by Minett to approve Consent Item 3D. 
(Approved 5 – 0) 
 
4.     APPROVAL OF ACTION MINUTES: 
 

A. City Council Meeting – November 14, 2018 
Action: Motion by Moberg, seconded by Senum to approve November 14, 2018 minutes as 
presented.  
(Approved 5 – 0) 
 

B. Special City Council Meeting – November 20, 2018 
Action: Motion by Senum, seconded by Moberg to approve November 20, 2018 special 



3 

[Type here] 
 

 

meeting minutes as presented.  
(Approved 4 – 0, 1 Abstain-Strawser) 
 
5.     DEPARTMENT REQUESTED ACTION ITEMS AND UPDATE REPORTS: 
 

A. Subject: Monthly Update On City Council Six-Month Strategic Objectives 
Recommendation: Receive and file. 

Action: No action. Receive and file.  
 

B. Subject: Year End Update for Ongoing Citywide Projects 
Recommendation: Review and recommend further direction/next steps on 
presented projects if desired. 

Action: No action. Staff directed to add directional signage back on the list of things to work 
towards completing.   
 

C. Subject: Revised City of Nevada City Special Event Application/Contract 
Recommendation: Review and approve the revised City of Nevada City Special 
Event Application/Contract and Event Guidelines. 

Action: No action. Update to City Council on changes, receive and file. 
 
6.     PUBLIC HEARINGS:  
 

A. Subject: Ordinance to Regulate Wireless Telecommunications Facilities in the 
Right of Way 
Recommendation: Hold a Public Hearing and introduce by title only, and waive 
full reading of the ordinance, for first reading of an Ordinance Amending the 
Nevada City Municipal Code to add Chapter 17.150 entitled “Wireless 
Telecommunication Facilities in the Right of Way”. 

Action: Motion by Strawser, seconded by Minett to continue this item to a date certain of 
January 23, 2019 for review of comments regarding the Ordinance from Paul Albritton of 
Mackenzie & Albritton, LLP, the attorney representing Verizon Wireless. 
(Approved 5 – 0) 

 
B. Subject: A Public Hearing and Pass Resolution 2018-74 Establishing a 5-Year 

Wastewater Rate Structure with Scheduled Annual Incremental Increases 
Recommendation: Hold a Public Hearing and Pass Resolution 2018-74 
establishing a 5-year wastewater rate structure with scheduled annual incremental 
increases. 

Action: Motion by Senum, seconded by Strawser to pass Resolution 2018-74 establishing a 
5-year wastewater rate structure with scheduled annual incremental increases as presented.   
(Approved 4 – 1) Roll call vote – Yes:  Strawser, Moberg, Senum, and Parker  
No:  Minett 
 
 
7.       OLD BUSINESS: 
 

A. Subject: : An Ordinance of the City of Nevada City Repealing and Re-enacting 
Chapter 9.22 of Title 9 of the Nevada City Municipal Code Entitled “Medical 
Cannabis Dispensaries and Other Cannabis Businesses and Activity” and 



4 

[Type here] 
 

 

Renaming it “Cannabis Dispensaries and Other Cannabis Businesses and 
Activity”; Amending Chapter 17.142 Entitled “Medical Cannabis Uses and Activity” 
and Renaming it “Cannabis Uses and Activity” to Allow Adult-Use for Businesses 
and Activities Previously Restricted to Medical-only; and Amending Sections 
17.36.020, 17.40.020, and 17.48.020 (principal permitted uses in LB, GB, and LI 
zones) in Title 17 to Reflect the Amendment  
Recommendation: Introduce for a second reading an Ordinance  
2018-10 repealing and re-enacting Chapter 9.22 of Title 9 of the Nevada City 
Municipal Code, to allow adult-use cannabis businesses in addition to medical 
businesses to operate within City limits in appropriate zoning designations, as 
outlined in the above Title; waive reading of the Ordinance; read title only, and 
adopt the Ordinance.   

Action:  Motion by Senum, seconded by Minett to introduce for a second reading an 
Ordinance 2018-10 repealing and re-enacting Chapter 9.22 of Title 9 of the Nevada City 
Municipal Code, to allow adult-use cannabis businesses in addition to medical businesses to 
operate within City limits in appropriate zoning designations, as outlined in the above Title; 
waive reading of the Ordinance; read title only, and adopt the Ordinance.  Staff was directed 
to bring an Ordinance amendment back to Council to update Section 9.22.120 deleting 
subsection B, number 4. 

 
B. Subject: An Ordinance of the City of Nevada City Adding Chapter 8.06 of the 

Nevada City Municipal Code Addressing Unlawful Panhandling 
Recommendation: Waive reading of Ordinance, read title only and introduce for 
first reading. 

Action: Motion by Senum, seconded by Strawser to waive reading of Ordinance, read title 
only and introduce for first reading. 
(Approved 5 – 0) 
 

C. Subject: Approve Improvements for a Kiosk and Rail Exhibit at Clamper’s Square  
Recommendation: Approve a Notice of Exemption improvements to the 
Clamper’s Square. 

Action: Motion by Strawser, seconded by Moberg to approve a Notice of Exemption 
improvements to the Clamper’s Square. 
(Approved 5 – 0) 
 
8.      NEW BUSINESS: 
 

A. Subject: Request for Council Review and Consideration of Grievance by 
Firefighter Michael Chau Regarding Incentive Pay Requirements and City 
Manager’s Decision Thereon  
Recommendation: Commence conducting a review of the grievance, determining 
the best means to conduct a review of the facts and issues and determine if any 
further investigation is needed and set a date for rendering a decision or render a 
decision if nothing else is needed. 

Action: City Council conducted a review of the grievance, determined that there was no 
further investigation needed and rendered a unanimous decision to uphold the determination 
of the Fire Chief, Mark Buttron and City Manager, Catrina Olson to not include the six months 
of temporary work towards the three years of employment required to receive incentive pay 
for qualified certifications.  City Council directed City Attorney, Hal DeGraw to draft a letter to 



5 

[Type here] 
 

 

Michael Chau with the decision that was rendered.   
 

B. Subject: Resolution Approving Application of Cal Fire – Fire Prevention Grant 
Recommendation: Pass Resolution 2018-75 Approving a Notice of Exemption 
(NOE), Pass Resolution 2018-76 Approving the Cal Fire Environmental Review 
Report, and Pass Resolution 2018-77 Approving Application of Cal Fire – Fire 
Prevention Grant and authorize the Mayor to sign. 

Action: Motion by Moberg, seconded by Minett to pass Resolution 2018-75 approving a 
Notice of Exemption (NOE), pass Resolution 2018-76 approving the Cal Fire Environmental 
Review Report, and pass Resolution 2018-77 approving application of Cal Fire – Fire 
Prevention Grant and authorize the Mayor to sign.  
(Approved 5 – 0)  
 

C. Subject: Proposition 68 Funding:  California Drought, Water, Parks, Climate, 
Coastal Protection and Outdoor Access for All Act of 2018 
Recommendation: Choose top priority projects and direct staff on how to proceed 
with participation in the grant application process. 

Action: No action.  City Council directed staff to proceed with setting a community meeting to 
review possible priority projects for Proposition 68 funding. 
 

D. Subject: Vegetation Management on City Owned Properties – Prescriptive 
Grazing “Goat Brigade” 
Recommendation: Review progress made regarding vegetation management on 
City owned properties with the use of the “Goat Brigade” for prescriptive grazing 
and approve recommended next steps on presented project locations. 

Action: No action.  City Council update regarding suggested projects.  Staff directed to 
proceed with Pioneer Park project for prescriptive grazing contributing approximately $3,000. 

 
9.        CORRESPONDENCE:   
 
10. ANNOUNCEMENTS:  
 
11. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT: 
 
12.      ADJOURNMENT:  - 10:24 PM 
                               

                                       
_______________________________________          

     David Parker, Mayor 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 

 
 

____________________________________ 
Niel Locke, City Clerk 



REPORT TO CITY COUNCIL     City of Nevada City 
          317 Broad Street 
          Nevada City CA 95959 
January 9, 2019        www.nevadacityca.gov 
___________________________________________________________________________ 

 
TITLE:  Vegetation Management on City Owned Properties – Prescriptive Grazing “Goat 
Brigade” Quotes and Update on Pioneer Project 

 
RECOMMENDATION:  Review quotes, the Pioneer Project and progress made regarding 
vegetation management on City owned properties with the use of the “Goat Brigade” for 
prescriptive grazing and recommend next steps on presented project locations. 

 
CONTACT:  Catrina Olson, City Manager 

 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION:  
The City has a Strategic Plan in place with three year goals.  One of the three year goals is to 
Manage and reduce homelessness and transient populations.  One of the current six months’ 
objectives is to present to the City Council a Fire/Homeless Reduction Program: “The Goat 
Brigade” to clear out brush and trash and remove homeless camps. 
 
As a part of that objective on October 26, 2018 a meeting was held to introduce and talk about 
prescribed grazing “The Goat Brigade”.  October 29, 2018 City Staff with Council Member 
Senum met with several ranchers, including Rob Thompson of Legacy Ranching, to tour several 
City open spaces that Nevada City Staff and Council considers very high fire hazard zones. 
 
A map is attached to the staff report identifying the areas of concern which include: 

1. Clark Street and Sacramento Street by the City’s overflow parking lot 
2. Pioneer Park – near softball (starting on Silva Avenue) to the picnic area near the 

horseshoe pits 
3. Woods Ravine off Highway 49 
4. The west side of Hirschman’s Pond 
5. The City Environs from the Wastewater Treatment Plan to Providence Mine Road 
6. The Nevada City Old Airport various sites 

Prescriptive grazing would be used in some of these areas but would need volunteer and/or 
Washington Ridge Crews hand work as a follow-up.  Some of the areas would be volunteer 
and/or Washington Ridge Crews hand work only. 
 
Attached are three quotes the City has received from Legacy Ranching, The Goat Works and 
NM Ranch providing estimates of grazing costs for several of the areas identified above. 
 
The City has selected Pioneer Park to be the first project to begin the process of using 
prescriptive grazing (the “Goat Brigade”).  This project is the smallest and least expensive project 
as compared to some of the other identified areas.  This project will be used as an educational 
tool to provide community outreach as to the use of prescriptive grazing for vegetation 
management.  City staff have met with Robert Thompson of Legacy Ranching to contract for the 
Pioneer Park project.  This project will be occurring in the next 30 days, but is weather 

http://www.nevadacityca.gov/


dependent. A public service announcement will be issued to social media as the project period 
approaches. 
 
Council Member Senum in conjunction with City Staff have started a “Go Fund Me” campaign to 
provide ongoing funding to support citywide vegetation management efforts.  The 
“GoatFundMeNevadaCity” information is attached. 
  
FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS:  Pioneer Project to be City funded with General Fund open 
space budget FY 18/19 approximately $3,000.  Larger projects identified above will be covered 
by funds raised through the GoatFundMeNevadaCity efforts.   

 
ATTACHMENT:   
 Maps identifying areas of City owned property for vegetation management 
 “GoatFundMeNevadaCity” information 
 Three quotes from Legacy Ranching, The Goat Works and NM Ranch. 

  









 
Check out the GoFundMe campaign just launched this 
evening: gofundme.com/GoatFundMeNevadaCity 

 
ALL HANDS ON DECK 
 
There is little need to stress how important it is to the safety and wellbeing of 
Nevada City citizens and neighboring residents that we reduce the fire load in 
our surrounding forests and neighborhoods. The unprecedented fires in 
California, particularly in Paradise, have hit all too close to home and have 
become the ultimate Cautionary Tale. 
 
Fortunately, we can do something about it and while the City of Nevada City is 
taking the lead we cannot do this alone. Whether you are a homeowner, a 
renter, or a business owner, we are all in the same boat together, equally at risk 
for catastrophic fire. 
 

THE CITY OF NEVADA CITY 
 
Our city staff, fire and police departments, as well as city council members 
realize how important it is that we take proactive steps NOW. This is why we 
have been working for weeks with local ranchers to launch a goat/sheep 
prescriptive grazing on city-owned land including the over 450 acres of city-
owned greenbelt. 
 
In addition to these greenbelts, we are starting this December with the backside 
of Pioneer Park as our Goat Grazing Public Demonstration. While we are being 
proactive as a city we believe in the Chinese Proverb, "Give a man a fish and 
you feed him for a day. Teach a man to fish and you feed him for a lifetime." 
 
We know it’s equally important that we teach our local residents how to reduce 
the risk on their own property by providing this Public Demonstration, as well 
as tips, tools, best practices, and contact info of qualified, vetted ranchers. We 
will provide this information in brochure-form as well as on our official city 
website so you can utilize the same prescriptive grazing techniques on your 
property and surrounding neighborhood as we will on our city-owned land.  
 
However, we can't do this alone and this is why: 
 

TIME IS OF THE ESSENCE 
 
Yes, we can use prescriptive grazing as a solution to reduce our risk of 



catastrophic fire, BUT the rub is we only have THIS winter available to use 
several different large herds: Our local ranchers have already rented out their 
herds next spring, summer, and fall. And while the ranchers are expanding to 
meet demand, for now, they are only available to Nevada City on a large scale 
THIS winter..... THIS is why time is of the essence. 
 
While we turn to our homeowners, renters, business owners, and neighborhood 
associations, we will be looking at securing grant funding as well. However, 
this generally takes many weeks or months and we simply don't have that kind 
of time to be able to launch the program by this month, December, and 
throughout the rest of the winter. 
 
Paradise, California, 2018 
 
Prescriptive grazing utilizes goats for bushes, trees, and manzanita (not scotch 
broom) while sheep graze on grass. The program requires a herdsman to be on-
site at all times as well as a camping trailer, water wagon, electric fencing, 
herding dog, and transport trailer. It also requires timely public notice through 
signage alerting residents of the incoming herd.  
 
Prescriptive grazing can cost anywhere from $500 to $1,000 per acre depending 
on the difficulty of the terrain and how much there is to graze. Approximately 
200 goats can knock down an acre per day. Nevada City has over 450 acres of 
greenbelt and it is of utmost importance we keep the fire risk to a minimum. 
That’s a lot of acreage, but we’re breaking it down into bite sizes and 
prioritizing where the risk is greatest. However, the more money we raise, the 
more acreage we can cover!  
 

THE PLAN 
 
To get going, the city staff is recommending the City Council approve (up to) 
$5,000 for the Pioneer Park Prescriptive Grazing, Public Demonstration, & 
Outreach Materials. City staff and council members have walked city owned 
property and have identified 4 different methods of clearing as well as the 
following properties as high priority for this winter: 
  
METHOD 
Community Volunteers  (CV)  
Goats or Sheep; Prescriptive Grazing  (G) 
Jail Work Release Program, or Washington Ridge Crews (WR) 
Machinery (M) 
 

LOCATIONS & (METHOD) 



Pioneer Park   (G) (CV) 
Deer Creek Environs including Treatment Plant (G) (CV) (WR) 
Woods Ravine (West of Hirschman's Pond) (G) (WR) 
Sugar Loaf (WR) 
Old Airport (M) 
  
Once these properties have been cleared we will follow up with hand-crews. 
We will need community volunteers for easy-to-reach properties and are 
working towards partnering with the County to utilize the Jail Release Program 
and/or the Washington Ridge Crews.  
 
We will maximize the benefits of clearing out these properties by also 
following up with removing abandoned homeless camp so as to discourage 
homeless camps in the future thus reducing the fire risk even more while 
ensuring a healthy watershed! 
 
Please support us in keeping Nevada City and surrounding communities 
safe.  If we don't do this for ourselves, it's simply not going to happen. There is 
no better insurance policy than to reduce the risk at hand. Let's be proactive and 
ensure that we are safe and thriving in a healthy, fire-free community! 
 











REPORT TO CITY COUNCIL     City of Nevada City 
          317 Broad Street 
          Nevada City CA 95959 
January 9, 2019        www.nevadacityca.gov 
___________________________________________________________________________ 
 
TITLE:  County of Nevada Parks and Recreation Consolidation Feasibility Study 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Provide staff direction regarding participation in the study. 
 
CONTACT:  Dawn Zydonis, Parks & Recreation Manager 
 
BACKGROUND / DISCUSSION:    
The County of Nevada has hired Economic & Planning Systems Consulting Firm (EPS) to 
conduct a feasibility study to determine if consolidation of park and recreation programs and 
operations could be advantageous for local residents. 
 
There have been two public meetings regarding the study.  These meetings were an opportunity 
for the public to provide input and ideas about the study.  The agendas from those meetings are 
attached. 
 
EPS has been gathering information from each of the three Park & Recreation Districts in 
Western Nevada County (Western Gateway Recreation & Park District, Bear River Park & 
Recreation District & Oak Tree Community Park & Recreation District).  They are interested in 
getting feedback and information from Nevada City.  Staff would like direction from the Council 
on our level of participation in this study. 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL CONSIDERATIONS: None 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: None 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 Agendas from previous public meetings held by County of Nevada and EPS 
 Parks and Recreation Consolidation Study Summary 

 
 

http://www.nevadacityca.gov/






 

 

Printed on Recycled Paper 

Brian Foss 

 Planning Director 

COUNTY OF NEVADA 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AGENCY 
PLANNING DEPARTMENT 
950 MAIDU AVENUE, SUITE 170,  NEVADA CITY, CA    95959 -8617 

(530)  265-1222  FAX (530)  265 -9851  ht tp: / /mynevadacounty .co m  

Sean Powers 
Community Development Agency Director 

 

 

 

 

    
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

Notice of Public Meeting 
County of Nevada and Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. 

Park District Consolidation Feasibility Study and Park Facility Impact Fee Nexus Study 

Park and Recreation Stakeholder Meeting 

Date: Monday, September 17 

Time: 6:00 PM to 8:00 PM 

Location: Board of Supervisors Chambers at the Eric Rood Administrative Center, 950 Maidu 

Ave, Nevada City, CA 95959 

 

Background & Meeting Purpose: Nevada County is partnering with Economic & Planning 

Systems, Inc. (EPS) to update the County’s Park Facility Impact Fee and to conduct a Western 

Nevada County Parks District Consolidation Feasibility Study. The main focus of this meeting 

will be regarding the feasibility of park district consolidation. 

 

Consolidation Feasibility Study: Western Nevada County has 3 independent Park and 

Recreation Districts outside of the Grass Valley/Nevada City and Twin Ridges areas including 

Western Gateway Recreation and Park District, Bear River Park and Recreation District, and 

Oak Tree Community Park and Recreation District. EPS will be conducting a Western Nevada 

County Park District Consolidation Feasibility Study to determine if consolidation could be 

advantageous for parks and recreational opportunities to local residents. 

 

Park Facility Impact Fee: The County collects fees for parks and recreation on new 

development to mitigate its impact on the need for new park facilities - the more people, the 

more parks needed. The fees are then provided to 5 Recreation Benefit Zones across Western 

Nevada County. EPS is conducting a Nexus Study to update the fees that were last updated in 

1997. 

 

Meeting Purpose: EPS is looking for input from the Nevada County community and interested 

stakeholders regarding parks and recreation facilities and services in Nevada County.  The 

meeting discussion will focus on the feasibility of reorganizing park districts in order to increase 

recreational opportunities and efficiencies and update on the Nexus Study regarding AB1600 

fees will be provided. Public input and discussion is welcome to help shape the future of Western 

Nevada County Parks and Recreation! 

 

Agenda 

1. County Introduction and Overview 

2. EPS Presentation – Park District Consolidation Feasibility Study Update 

3. EPS Presentation – Update on AB1600 Nexus Study and Fee 

4. Public Input/Questions & Answers 

5. Closing Remarks and Next Steps 



Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. 1 H:\CLERK\CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS\Agendas 2019\CC Agenda 01.09.2019\5B-4 Attach P&R Consolidation Summary.docx 

Pa r k  D i s t r i c t  Co nso l ida t io n  Fea s ib i l i t y  S tudy  

EPS is working with Nevada County (County) to conduct a feasibility analysis evaluating 
alternative approaches to providing parks and recreation services to Western County residents 
(excluding the Truckee Donner area).  Currently, park and recreation services in Western Nevada 
County are provided by 3 separate independent park and recreation districts outside of the Grass 
Valley and Nevada City areas:  

— Western Gateway Recreation and Park District,  

— Bear River Park and Recreation District, and  

— Oak Tree Community Park and Recreation District. 

For areas in the Western County that are not in a park and recreation district, the County 
provides limited park and recreation facilities and services, and many residents use park and 
recreation facilities and services provided by the Cities of Nevada City and Grass Valley. 

EPS’s study is specifically evaluating how different governance structures, namely consolidation 
of park and recreation service providers, might improve park and recreation service provision in 
the Western County.  EPS’s analysis is focused on the feasibility of various governance structure 
approaches, with the intent of inventorying pros and cons of various approaches as well as future 
steps needed to implement each alternative.   

It is important to note that EPS’s study is not expected to establish a specific recommendation 
regarding how park and recreation services are provided.  The intent is instead to provide 
information that will facilitate future discussions and deliberation between the various parks and 
recreation service providers to determine the most effective and efficient approach to providing 
services.   

EPS’s study will specifically evaluate the financial feasibility of identified alternatives (e.g., all 
providers consolidate, some consolidate, etc.), identifying the potential for cost efficiencies and 
evaluating the potential for service delivery enhancements or other impacts.  

Data Needs 

From each existing government entity participating in the District Consolidation Feasibility Study, 
EPS is requesting the following data and information to inform the analysis: 

Park Inventory Data 

• Inventory of parks and recreation facilities and buildings (e.g., ball fields, pools, playing 
courts, community center), including publicly used school district facilities and joint use 
agreement documentation. 

• Inventory of public park acreage by type (e.g., neighborhood, community), including publicly 
used school district facilities and joint use agreement documentation. 

• Park master planning documents. 

• Recreation capital improvement plans. 



Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. 2 H:\CLERK\CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS\Agendas 2019\CC Agenda 01.09.2019\5B-4 Attach P&R Consolidation Summary.docx 

Staffing and Budget 

• Park and Recreation budget information – sources and allocation of revenues, annual 
expenses 

• Staff FTE, organizational chart 

• Park maintenance detail: 

— Contract services agreements 

— Staff performed maintenance 

— Partnership agreements (i.e., contracted agreements in coordination with other 
organizations) 

• Detail on parcel taxes or other dedicated revenue sources 

Programming 

• List of park and recreation programs offered. 

• Youth or other organization affiliations and partnerships (e.g., sports leagues). 

EPS also requests any other information that may help to provide additional context or 
supplemental information and appreciates the opportunity to interview local staff and 
policymakers to understand the dynamics surrounding parks and recreation service provision.  



REPORT TO CITY COUNCIL     City of Nevada City 
          317 Broad Street 
          Nevada City CA 95959 
January 9, 2019        www.nevadacityca.gov 
___________________________________________________________________________ 
 
TITLE: Sugarloaf Trail Progress Update 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Receive and File. 
 
CONTACT:  Amy Wolfson, City Planner;  

          Bryan McAlister, City Engineer 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION:  
At the May 10, 2017 meeting, Council approved a conceptual trail alignment for the Sugarloaf 
Trail as proposed by the Bear Yuba Land Trust.  Since the conceptual approval, staff and the 
Land Trust have worked with consultants to prepare several special studies that will inform 
preparation of an initial study pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). Staff 
has set up a webpage on the City website that provides links to completed studies, including the 
following reports: 1) Geotechnical Engineering Feasibility Study, 2) Cultural Resource Survey, 
and 3) a Biological Inventory. 
 
The webpage also contains an updated project description and the most recent trail 
construction plans as prepared by City Engineer, Bryan McAlister. With the above information 
compiled, staff was able to send out a notice of distribution and request for agency comment to 
pertinent agencies, marking the first step in the preparation of the environmental document 
pursuant to CEQA. The agency comment deadline is January 18, 2019. The Sugarloaf Trail 
webpage can be found at: https://www.nevadacityca.gov/pview.aspx?id=20862&catid=564 
 
NEXT STEPS:  
Before the City Planner can begin preparation of the environmental document, staff will need to 
receive a notification list from the Native American Heritage Commission (NAHC) in compliance 
with the State Historic Preservation Office (SHPO). Once agency comments are received, 
including from NAHC, the City Planner will begin preparation of the environmental document.   
 
Trail improvements also require an encroachment permit from the CA Department of 
Transportation (Caltrans) for the portion of the trail that is within State right-of-way.  In response 
to staff’s initial application, Caltrans has requested an extensive amount of additional 
information.   City staff is in the process of resubmitting the application with the requested 
information.    After acceptance of the application, there are six departments at Caltrans that will 
need to approve the plan prior to issuance of the permit.    Caltrans is the regulatory approving 
agency for this portion of the trail. 
 
Trail improvements cannot occur until the environmental document is adopted.   Furthermore, 
the portion of trail improvements within State right-of-way cannot occur until a Caltrans 
encroachment permit is secured.  

http://www.nevadacityca.gov/
https://www.nevadacityca.gov/pview.aspx?id=20862&catid=564


 
FISCAL CONSIDERATIONS:  The trail implementation process is funded by volunteers of the 
Bear Yuba Land Trust. Some staff time will be required for processing a formal trail proposal 
and preparing the CEQA document.  
 
 
ATTACHMENT: 

1. Distribution Notice, December 18, 2018 
2. Caltrans response letter,  November 29, 2018, with attached encroachment application 
3. Trail improvement plans 



STATE OF CALIFORNIA-CALIFORNIA STATE TRANSPORTATION AGENCY 

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

DISTRICT 3 
703 B STREET 
MARYSVILLE, CA 95901 
PHONE (530) 741-4403 
FAX (530) 741-4236 
TTY 711 
www.dot.ca.gov/dist3 

November 29, 2018 

EDMUND G. BROWN Jr. Governor 

Making Conservation 
a California Way of life. 

03-NEV-49-15.4

Bryan McAlister 
City of Nevada City 
3 1 7 Broad Street 
Nevada City, CA 95959 

Dear Mr. McAlister: 

This is to inform you that we have performed an initial screening for the completeness of your 
encroachment permit application received on November 26, 2018, as submitted, for permission 
to construct a portion of the Sugarloaf Pedestrian Trail within the State's Right-of-Way (R/W) at 
the NE quadrant of the intersection of State Route 49 and North Bloomfield Road in Nevada 
City. 

We regret to inform you that your application cannot be processed as submitted until the 
comments below are addressed: 

1. Show and clearly label the State's R/W lines on the plans. If you need assistance
identifying the State's R/W lines, contact the Caltrans R/W Engineering Front Map
Counter at 530-741-7101 or email Tiffany Bean at tiffany.bean@dot.ca.gov.
Provide detailed information about the proposed trail within State's R/W. Some critical
information that is missing includes, slopes, cross slopes, landing area detail, type of
ADA elements, grading plans, cross sections of trail, offset distances from ETW, efo.
Provide quantity tables on the plans.
Provide an alignment with stations to the proposed trail. Reference the cross sections,
bridge details, etc., with reference to the stations.

!r'12,., O·p�� Provide construction details at landing area and connection to the road with cross
sections, slopes, materials, type of elements to be used. 

6. Bridge detail shows variable dimensions, this shall be actual not estimated.
7. The name of the trail is not the same on the application and plans, different names are

used like "Sugarloaf Trail", "walking path", "pedestrian facility". We understand that it
is pedestrian trail named Sugarloaf Trail. Revise the plans and application form Box 17
and use a consistent name for the trail.
Box 17 of the application form needs to be re-written to make it clearer. Paragraph 1 can
be for what the permit application is for, and paragraph 2 can discuss the various
elements involved for construction within the State's R/W.

"Provide a safe, sustainable, integrated and efficient transportation system 
to enhance California's economy and livability" 

AWolfson
Stamp

AWolfson
Stamp



Mr. McAlister 
November 29, 2018 
Page 2 

9. The application mentions the removal of an existing trestle foot bridge and its
reinstallation at a new location. Revise the plans and show this detail on the plans with
relevant construction notes and legends.

10. Provide complete construction details of the proposed rock retaining wall.

Please note that these comments are preliminary, additional comments may be provided when we 
review a new, revised encroachment permit application, and detailed plans. You may visit 
http://www.dot.ca.gov/trafficops/ep/ for reference to prepare for the Encroachment Permit 
Application, plans and documents. 

Attached please find the plan set requirements for your reference. 

If you have any questions or concerns, please contact the permit writer, Tejinde1jit Singh, at 530-
741-4403.

Sincerely, 

f:>�t-}-MdoGL 

HIKMAT BSAIBESS, P.E. 
District Permit Engineer 

Enclosures 
(1) Encroachment permit application form and documents received on November 26, 2018
(2) Plan set requirements

"Provide a safe, sustainable, integrated and efficient transportation system 
to enhance California's economy and livability" 

AWolfson
Stamp









NEVADA CITY PLANNING DEPARTMENT 
317 Broad Street 

Nevada City CA 95959 
INITIAL DISTRIBUTION / PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

 
DATE:  December18, 2018 

 
This project is being distributed to you for your review and comment. Your comments and/or 
conditions must be received, in writing, no later than Friday, January 18, 2019.  Please e-mail a 
digital copy to the City Planner. If you need additional information to complete your review, please 
contact the City Planner before the comment deadline.  
 
PLEASE NOTE: The following supplemental documents are available on the Planning Department 
page of the Nevada City website at NevadaCityCA.gov under the “current projects” heading. This 
list will be updated as maps and studies are revised or added for the duration of project processing: 
 

1. Sugarloaf Trail Improvement Plans 
2. Geotechnical Engineering Feasibility Study 
3. Cultural Resource Survey 
4. Biological Inventory  
5. Sugarloaf Master Plan  
6. Approved Trail Route 

 
 
Please contact the Planner below if you would like hard copies of the plans or of any of the 
supplemental material.  
 
 
PROJECT: A proposed multi-use trail construction project within the Nevada City limits on a 
30.59-acre open space parcel (APN 036-020-026) that encompasses all but the northern flank of 
Sugarloaf Mountain, with easements through two private parcels (APNs 005-310-009 & 005-310-
10) and along the right-of-way of State Highway 49. The goal of the trail project is to connect 
downtown Nevada City to the top of Sugarloaf Mountain. The trail route will be approximately one 
mile in length. It will commence at the corner of State Highway 49 and North Bloomfield Road, 
and terminate at a point along an existing gravel access road that goes to the top of Sugarloaf from 
an entrance on upper Coyote Street.  The new trail will also connect to an existing graveled 
excavated area, approximately 0.10 acre in size that will be improved to accommodate trail parking 
for approximately eight vehicles. The parking area will connect via an existing informal, user-
created trail, which will be minimally improved (brush clearing and tread improvement for drainage 
and loose rock removal).  The proposed trail also offers connection to Hirschman Trail and 
Tobiassen Park via a recently established County trail that runs west from North Bloomfield Road 
to the Nevada County Government Center. 
 

To: Nevada City Engineer – B. McAlister US Fish & Wildlife (Sent 12/27) 
 Nevada City Public Works – B. Highsmith CA Fish & Wildlife 
 Nevada City Police – J. Leal Nevada City Parks and Rec.– D. Zydonis 
 Nevada City Fire – S. Goodspeed Friends of Nevada City 
 Nev. Co. Planning Dept. – B. Foss N. Sierra Air Quality Mgt. Dist. 
 CalTrans – S. Zanchi Sierra Streams Institute 
 Transportation Commission/Airport Manager Cal-Fire –Forestry Division 
 Native American Heritage Foundation Water Quality Cntrl. Bd. (Central Valley) 

(Sent 12/27) 
 Nevada City Rancheria Tribal Council City Manager – C. Olson 
 FREED City Attorney – H. DeGraw 



The first 1/3 mile of the trail will run east from the northeast corner of State Hwy 49 and North 
Bloomfield Road, within the State Hwy 49 right of way to a 20-foot wide private easement that 
traverses the west side of APN 005-310-009 (currently leased by US Forest Service) and through  
the west side of APN 005-310-010. From there, the trail enters the City’s Sugarloaf property, 
continues in a northeasterly direction, before aligning primarily to the north and ultimately 
connecting to the existing Sugarloaf Trail access road.    
 
All new trails will be constructed in accordance with USFS trail construction standards and best 
management practices (BMPs). The total disturbance area will be approximately 1/2 acre. The trail 
will be narrow, not to exceed four feet in width in order to encourage slower travel speeds. 
Vegetative clearings up to 10-feet wide may occur every 200-feet in order to accommodate winter 
vegetative burn piles during trail construction and for continued trail maintenance. Trail grades will 
typically be close to 8% throughout the project, except where physical constraints require a steeper 
grade to avoid irregular topography, rock outcrops, large trees or other environmental concerns.  In 
no case will grades exceed 15%. Trail tread width will vary from 36 to 48  inches, depending on 
location, and physical constraints. On steep, rocky slopes, the trail width will be narrow to minimize 
disturbance and to reduce trail construction costs. The trail will be built using a mini excavator, 
chainsaws, and a variety of hand tools. On site materials used include rock for retaining walls and 
fill, and soil for grading will be used for construction of the trails. 
 
The proposed trail is located in the lower montane coniferous forest zone of the northern Sierra 
Nevada foothills at elevations of 2,600 to 3,000 ft. The trail will traverse an unnamed intermittent 
stream that parallels the western boundary of the Sugarloaf property. The intermittent stream is 
approximately 30-inches wide and will be crossed via a 15-foot span wooden bridge within the 
State Hwy 49 right-of-way. A rock retaining wall will also be necessary to stabilize an area of the 
proposed trail along a portion of the private easement through APN 005-310-010.  
     
APPLICANT:  City of Nevada City and Bear Yuba Land Trust  
  
OWNER:  City of Nevada City; California Department of Transportation; Coyote Street 

Property, LLC; Gary and Patricia Tintle 
 
APNs:  005-310-009, 005-310-010, 036-020-026  
 
LOCATION: Sugarloaf Mountain, east of Coyote Street, north of State Highway 49 
 
General Plan: OS Water: Nevada Irrigation District 
Zoning: OS Sewage: City (none proposed) 
Flood Map: Panel 369, Zone X Fire: Nevada City Fire Dist. 
ParcelSize: 30.59 ac. Schools: Nevada City School Dist 
Prev. File #(s):  Recreation: Nevada City Park & Rec District 
  DateFiled:

  
December 2018 

        
 

PROJECT PLANNER: Amy Wolfson, City Planner 
(530) 265-1496 x130   Email: amy.wolfson@nevadacityca.gov 

 



OF



C
I
T

Y
 
O

F
 
N

E
V

A
D

A
 
C

I
T

Y

3
1
7
 
B

R
O

A
D

 
S

T
R

E
E

T

N
E

V
A

D
A

 
C

I
T

Y
,
 
C

A
L
I
F

O
R

N
I
A

 
9
5
9
5
9

(
5
3
0
)
 
2
6
5
-
2
4
9
6

O
V

E
R

A
L
L
 S

IT
E

P
L
A

N

1 4

SUGARLOAF

49

49 20

20

W. BROAD ST

CEMENT HILL RD.

-PU
RD

O
N

N.
 B

LO
OM

FI
EL

D

LA
K

E V
ERA

WET HILL RD.

MAIN

E.
 B

RO
AD

ST
.

N. PINE

PROPERTY

LOCATION  MAP
N.T.S.



APN: 04-070-33

APN: 05-020-06

APN:
05-020-05

APN: 05-020-05

APN:
04-070-28

APN: 05-310-10

APN: 05-310-09

APN: 05-330-01

APN: 05-330-01

APN: 05-330-04

APN: 05-040-06

APN:
05-040-04

APN:
05-040-03

APN:
05-040-11

APN:
05-040-20

APN:
05-040-07

APN:
05-040-55

APN: 05-350-07

APN:
05-350-05

-06

-08-09

OF



C
I
T

Y
 
O

F
 
N

E
V

A
D

A
 
C

I
T

Y

3
1
7
 
B

R
O

A
D

 
S

T
R

E
E

T

N
E

V
A

D
A

 
C

I
T

Y
,
 
C

A
L
I
F

O
R

N
I
A

 
9
5
9
5
9

(
5
3
0
)
 
2
6
5
-
2
4
9
6

E
N

L
A

R
G

E
D

 S
IT

E
P

L
A

N

2 4

SCALE: 1"=2'

SOFT SURFACE TRAIL



OF



C
I
T

Y
 
O

F
 
N

E
V

A
D

A
 
C

I
T

Y

3
1
7
 
B

R
O

A
D

 
S

T
R

E
E

T

N
E

V
A

D
A

 
C

I
T

Y
,
 
C

A
L
I
F

O
R

N
I
A

 
9
5
9
5
9

(
5
3
0
)
 
2
6
5
-
2
4
9
6

E
N

L
A

R
G

E
D

 S
IT

E
P

L
A

N

3 4



OF



C
I
T

Y
 
O

F
 
N

E
V

A
D

A
 
C

I
T

Y

3
1
7
 
B

R
O

A
D

 
S

T
R

E
E

T

N
E

V
A

D
A

 
C

I
T

Y
,
 
C

A
L
I
F

O
R

N
I
A

 
9
5
9
5
9

(
5
3
0
)
 
2
6
5
-
2
4
9
6

D
E

T
A

IL
S

4 4



REPORT TO CITY COUNCIL     City of Nevada City 
          317 Broad Street 
          Nevada City CA 95959 
January 9, 2019        www.nevadacityca.gov 
___________________________________________________________________________ 
 
TITLE:   Provide Staff Direction Regarding how to Proceed with Staff Suggested 
Cannabis Ordinance Amendment in Adding a Moratorium on the Issuance of any 
Additional Cannabis Permits Associated with the Volatile Extraction Method. 
  
RECOMMENDATION:  Provide staff direction regarding proceeding in adding an amendment 
to the Cannabis Ordinance associated to placing a moratorium on issuing any further cannabis 
permits to volatile extraction method manufacturing applicants.  
 
CONTACT:  Chad Ellis, Police Lieutenant  

          Amy Wolfson, City Planner 
 
BACKGROUND / DISCUSSION:  
At the onset of the cannabis permitting process for the City of Nevada City there were two 
potential manufacturing business types to license (volatile and non-volatile).  During the initial 
phases of the application process it was unknown if the State of California was going to 
consider the ethanol extraction method as volatile or non-volatile.  In order to proceed with the 
application and permit process the City of Nevada City decided to allow the issuance of 
permits for both volatile and non-volatile businesses.  The intent of this was to allow the 
ethanol extraction method to be permitted in the City of Nevada City whether the State of 
California deemed ethanol extraction volatile or non-volatile.   
 
The application process began in Nevada City and permits were being reviewed and approved 
for both volatile and non-volatile cannabis businesses.  The State of California later deemed 
that ethanol extraction was to be classified as non-volatile.  With this classification for ethanol 
being listed as non-volatile, it left two cannabis permits in the City of Nevada City in the volatile 
license category (Sky Farms and The Searls Group).  Further research and education revealed 
the dangers of the volatile extraction method.  These volatile extraction methods utilize toxic 
chemicals and a very high pressure system.  They are known to be extremely flammable and 
incidences throughout the country have shown a very high probability of explosion.  With this 
new information and state licensing, it may be in the best interest of the City to add an 
amendment to the current Cannabis Ordinance placing a moratorium on the issuance of any 
further volatile cannabis manufacturing business permits. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  None. 
 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: None. 

 

http://www.nevadacityca.gov/


REPORT TO CITY COUNCIL     City of Nevada City 
          317 Broad Street 
          Nevada City CA 95959 
January 9, 2019          www.nevadacityca.gov 
___________________________________________________________________________ 
 
TITLE:  An Ordinance of the City of Nevada City Adding Chapter 8.06 of the Nevada City 
Municipal Code Addressing Unlawful Panhandling 

RECOMMENDATION:  Waive reading of Ordinance, read title only and introduce for second 
reading and final adoption of the Ordinance. 

CONTACT:   James Leal, Interim Police Chief 
  Catrina Olson, City Manager   

Hal DeGraw, City Attorney 

 
DISCUSSION:  
At the October 10, 2018 City Council meeting staff was directed by the City Council to return 
with an Ordinance addressing aggressive panhandling in light of the increasing number of 
complaints about such behavior. 
 
During that City Council meeting, it was pointed out in the Report to City Council that the 
majority of the complaints, especially Downtown and in the Historic District, as well as, in local 
shopping centers, stemmed from aggressive behavior from panhandlers. Complaints reported 
that they actively pursue citizens into stores, approach them near their vehicles and enter into 
or block public roadways causing traffic congestion and safety hazards; public fear and 
intimidation; and has negatively impacted both businesses and the general quality of life in 
Nevada City. 
 
Staff sought direction on drafting an Ordinance to address unlawful and aggressive 
panhandling in the City because existing Ordinances do not adequately address the problem. 
Staff has reviewed regulations of such behavior in other cities and prepared the attached 
Ordinance prohibiting unlawful panhandling in the City. As drafted, the Ordinance does not 
attempt to ban all panhandling but rather to constitute reasonable time, place, manner and 
regulation of objectively defined behavior beyond the bounds of constitutionally protected 
freedoms of speech and expression.  

Staff brought forward and Ordinance for a first reading at the December 12, 2018 meeting.  
The Ordinance is being brought forward for the second and final reading for adoption. 

ENVIRONMENTAL CONSIDERATIONS: None. 

FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS:  Unknown. Potential sales/use tax from greater patronage of 
businesses due to a more welcoming/safer environment. 

ATTACHEMNTS:  
 Ordinance No. 2018-XX, An Ordinance of the City of Nevada City Adding Chapter 8.06 

to Title 8 of the Nevada City Municipal Code Addressing Unlawful Panhandling, 
attached Exhibit A 

http://www.nevadacityca.gov/


ORDINANCE NO. 2019-XX 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF NEVADA CITY ADDING CHAPTER 8.06 
TO TITLE 8 OF THE NEVADA CITY MUNICIPAL CODE ADDRESSING 

UNLAWFUL PANHANDLING 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council members, City Manager and the Police Department 
have received an increasing number of complaints in the past several years 
related to abusive panhandling throughout the City, especially in the Downtown 
area and the Historic District as well as in local shopping centers; and 
 
WHEREAS, the reported behavior not only causes traffic delays, congestion and 
safety hazards, but also causes residents and visitors to fear for their safety and 
negatively impacts both businesses and the general quality of life in the City; and 
 
WHEREAS, such complained of behavior exceeds any exercise of 
constitutionally protected free speech and expression, necessitating reasonable 
time, place, manner regulation to protect the public health, safety and welfare; 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Nevada 
City as follows: 
 
SECTION I: 
 
Title 8 (Health and Safety) of the Nevada City Municipal Code is hereby 
amended to add a new Chapter 8.06 (Unlawful Panhandling) adopted to read as 
set forth in Exhibit “A”, attached hereto and incorporated herein by such 
reference. 
 
SECTION II:  
 
STATUTORY CONSTRUCTION & SEVERABILITY: It is the intent of the City 
Council of the City of Nevada City to impose reasonable time, place, and manner 
restrictions to supplement applicable state and federal law and not to duplicate or 
contradict such law and this ordinance shall be construed consistently with that 
intention. If any section, subsection, subdivision, paragraph, sentence, clause or 
phrase of this ordinance, or its application to any person or circumstance, is for 
any reason held to be invalid or unenforceable, such invalidity or unenforceability 
shall not affect the validity or enforceability of the remaining sections, 
subsections, subdivisions, paragraphs, sentences, clauses or phrases of this 
ordinance, or its application to any other person or circumstance. The City 
Council of the City of Nevada City hereby declares that it would have adopted 
each section, subsection, subdivision, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase 
hereof, irrespective of the fact that any one or more other sections, subsections, 
subdivisions, paragraphs, sentences, clauses or phrases hereof be declared 
invalid or unenforceable. 



 
SECTION III: 
 
CEQA EXEMPTION: The City Council finds and declares that this Ordinance is 
exempt from environmental review under the California Environmental Quality 
Act (CEQA) pursuant the general rule exemption in subsection (b)(3) of section 
15061 of the CEQA Guidelines. 
 
SECTION IV: 
 
This Ordinance shall become effective thirty (30) days after the adoption date 
thereof and within fifteen (15) days of the passage of this Ordinance, the City 
Clerk shall publish this Ordinance in The Union, a newspaper of general 
circulation. 
 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED this ___ day of _______, 2019 by the following vote: 
 
AYES:   
 
NOES:   
 
ABSTAIN:  
 
ABSENT:  

           
  _________________________________ 

      David Parker, Mayor 
ATTEST:___________________ 
               Niel Locke, City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



EXHIBIT “A” 
 

Chapter 8.06 
 

UNLAWFUL PANHANDLING 
 
Sections: 
 8.06.010 Purpose 
 8.06.020 Definitions 
 8.06.030 Prohibited Act – Unlawful Panhandling 
 8.06.040 Violation - Penalty 
 8.06.050 Severability 
 
8.06.010  Purpose 
 The purpose of this chapter is to allow citizens and visitors to enjoy public 
spaces in the City free from fear, harassment, and intimidation; to preclude 
disruption of local businesses; and to avoid disruption of pedestrian and vehicular 
traffic caused by unlawful panhandling that goes beyond Constitutionally 
protected free speech and freedom of expression. 
 
8.06.020 Definitions 
 As used in this chapter, the following words shall have the following 
meanings, unless the context clearly indicates otherwise:  

“Panhandling”, “panhandle” or any variation thereof, shall mean asking for 
money or objects of value with the intention that the money or object be 
transferred at that time, and at that place. Panhandling shall include using the 
spoken, written, or printed word, bodily gestures, signs, or other means with the 
purpose of obtaining an immediate donation of money or other thing of value. 

“Public place” shall mean a place where a governmental entity has title, or 
to which the public or a substantial group of persons has access, including, but 
not limited to, any street, alley, highway, sidewalk, path, trail,  parking lot, 
transportation facility or vehicle, building entrance, school, playground, plaza, or 
park. 

“Unlawful panhandling” shall include any and all of the following: 
1. Intentionally approaching, speaking to, gesturing or following of a 

person, before, during, or after panhandling, in such a manner that is likely 
to cause a reasonable person to fear bodily harm or the commission of a 
criminal act upon the person, or upon property in the person’s immediate 
possession or to otherwise be intimidated into giving up money, goods, or 
other things of value, or 

2. Intentionally approaching an occupied vehicle by entering into 
the roadway when traffic is either stopped or moving, before, during, or 
after panhandling; or 

3. Intentionally knocking on the window of, or physically reaching 
into an occupied vehicle before, during or after panhandling; or 



4. Continuing to solicit from a person after the person has given a 
negative response to such panhandling; or 

5. Intentionally touching or causing physical contact with another 
person without that person’s consent before, during, or after panhandling; 
or 

6. Intentionally blocking or interfering with the safe or free passage 
of a pedestrian or vehicle by any means, including causing a pedestrian or 
vehicle operator to take evasive action to avoid physical contact before, 
during, or after panhandling; or 

7. Using violent or threatening gestures toward a person before, 
during, or after panhandling; or 

8. Using profane, offensive, or abusive language that is likely to 
provoke an immediate violent reaction, before, during, or after 
panhandling.  
  

8.06.030 Prohibited Act – Unlawful Panhandling 
 It is prohibited and a public nuisance for any person to engage in unlawful 
panhandling as defined in this chapter in any public place. 
 
8.06.040 Exemptions 
 Nothing contained in this chapter shall be deemed to prohibit 
constitutionally protected freedom of speech and expression, picketing or 
protesting. 
 
8.06.050 Violation - Penalty 
 Any violation of this chapter shall be a misdemeanor punishable by a fine 
of not more than fire hundred dollars, or by imprisonment in the county jail for not 
more than six months, or by both such fine and imprisonment.  
 
8.06.060 Severability 
 If any section, sentence, clause, or phrase of this chapter is declared 
invalid or unconstitutional by any court of competent jurisdiction, it shall in no way 
affect the validity of any remaining portions of this chapter. 
 



REPORT TO CITY COUNCIL     City of Nevada City 
          317 Broad Street 
          Nevada City CA 95959 
January 9, 2019        www.nevadacityca.gov 
___________________________________________________________________________ 
 
TITLE:  Designated Smoking Areas Pilot Project 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Provide staff direction in proceeding with a designated smoking area 
six-month pilot project within the Historic District, as determined by City Council. 
 
CONTACT:  Catrina Olson, City Manager 

James Leal, Interim Police Chief 
Bryan McAlister, City Engineer 

 
BACKGROUND / DISCUSSION:  
Municipal Code Section 8.24.135 prohibits smoking in certain unenclosed areas including 
streets, sidewalks and municipal parking lots within the Historic District.   At the City Council 
meeting on March 9, 2016 there was a three month designated smoking area pilot project 
proposed by City Staff.  See sections below from the staff report of March 9, 2016: 
 
On February 24, 2016, the City Council reviewed receptacle designs for two previously approved designated 
smoking areas in the Historic District. At the meeting, the City Council authorized City staff to move forward with 
the receptacle design but also requested staff relocate the two designated smoking areas as follows: 
 

1) Relocate the previously approved Commercial Street Parking Lot designated smoking area 
(shown in the attached Commercial St. map) to the location of the bench adjacent to the fence. 
  

2) Relocate the previously approved designated smoking area in the Nevada Street parking lot to the 
Spring Street parking lot. 

 
The City Engineer has toured the Commercial Street parking lot and identified a few challenges with the 
requested modification. In order to properly adhere to Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) requirements, it 
would be necessary to remove a significant amount of concrete to provide a safe at-grade smoking area 
accessible by wheelchair near the bench location. The City Engineer has indicated this will be much more 
expensive than the original location because of concrete removal and the need to construct a new curb closer to 
the fence. Additionally, the bench location is near a Family Child Care Home where children are present, which 
presents concerns about second hand smoke exposure.   
 
The City has also received a significant amount of correspondence from residents and merchants near the Spring 
Street parking lot expressing concerns about the presence of a designated smoking area near their property. Staff 
has identified a location adjacent to the freeway that would be as minimally impactful to businesses/residents as 
possible (see attached Spring St. map). 
 
However, based on the above considerations, staff is recommending the City Council consider authorizing a 
limited three-month pilot project in the Commercial Street parking lot’s original location which can be 
implemented without concrete modifications. Following the three-month pilot, Staff will provide the Council with 
a report on how the designated area worked including impact on litter, loitering, compliance, etc.  This will 

http://www.nevadacityca.gov/


provide the Council with the opportunity to evaluate whether to continue with the Commercial Street designated 
smoking area and location, and whether or not to consider adding additional locations in the future. 
 
After modest research staff found that the proposed pilot program was never implemented.  
The City has continued to receive regular complaints about the littering of cigarettes and public 
smoking, and has received repeated requests to designate an area/areas that the merchants 
and their employees, out of town visitors and residents can be directed to if they would like to 
smoke. 
 
Staff have reviewed previous proposed areas and have identified what pros and cons they 
may have.  Police Chief Leal and Lt. Ellis in conjunction with the City Engineer, Bryan 
McAlister have new proposed areas that would not be intrusive/offensive to Nevada City 
patrons.  See the attached map exhibit with suggested locations. 
 
Staff re-introduced the idea of a designated smoking are pilot project during the September 26, 
2018 City Council meeting. Staff was directed to move forward in drafting and proposing a plan 
for a designated smoking area pilot project and to bring it back to City Council for review. Also, 
requested was that staff provide notice to all businesses in the proposed areas of the pilot 
project.  This has been done.  Staff is seeking Council discussion/approval on the proposed 
designated smoking area pilot project.  Staff will provide the Council with a report on how the 
designated area worked including impact on litter, loitering and compliance.  This will provide 
the Council with the opportunity to evaluate whether to continue with the designated smoking 
areas and location, and whether or not to consider adding additional locations in the future. 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL CONSIDERATIONS:  
Establishing designated smoking areas with properly designed fire resistant receptacles and 
the placement of receptacles in various locations assists in cleaning the environment in the 
immediate area, reducing the amount of toxic waste entering the drains ultimately ending up in 
Deer Creek and other streams, reducing the fire dangers associated with the careless 
discarding of cigarettes, and reducing second hand smoke exposure. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: Potential savings to the PD for staff time, issuing tickets, processing them, 
and going to court. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 Exhibit – Map with designated smoking areas 



bmcalister
Oval

bmcalister
Line

bmcalister
Line

bmcalister
Line

bmcalister
Oval

bmcalister
Oval

bmcalister
Text Box
City of Nevada City.Exhibit of Proposed Designated SmokingAreas within Downtown Historic District, for City Council consideration to be discussed at January 9th Meeting 6:30PM.for questions or comments call 265-2496 x126

bmcalister
Text Box
AREA 1

bmcalister
Text Box
AREA 2

bmcalister
Text Box
AREA 3



bmcalister
Text Box
AREA  1

bmcalister
Text Box
AREA  2

bmcalister
Text Box
AREA  3



REPORT TO CITY COUNCIL     City of Nevada City 
          317 Broad Street 
          Nevada City CA 95959 
January 9, 2019        www.nevadacityca.gov 
___________________________________________________________________________ 
 

TITLE:  An Ordinance Deleting Subsection B.4 of Section 9.22.120 of Chapter 9.22. of 
the Nevada City Municipal Code Relating to Labeling of the Products of Cannabis 
Manufacturing Businesses 

RECOMMENDATION: Waive reading of the Ordinance, read title only and introduce for a first 
reading. 

CONTACT:  Hal DeGraw, City Attorney 

BACKGROUND / DISCUSSION: 
In discussion from the public leading up to adoption of Ordinance No. 2018-10 removing the 
medical-only restriction for permitting cannabis businesses in the City, it was noticed that the 
Ordinance presented for the second reading carried forward a packaging and labeling 
requirement for cannabis manufacturing businesses that stated in Subsection B.4 of Section 
9.22.120: 
 

“A warning that the item is a medication and not a food must be clearly legible on the 
front of the package.”   

As pointed out by the public, this restriction is no longer necessary in light of the Council’s 
adoption of an adult use cannabis ordinance under which businesses are no longer limited to 
medical-only. However, this change could not be made at a second reading, so the Ordinance 
was adopted as it was presented, with staff being directed to return with an amendment to 
delete the aforementioned requirement. 

ENVIRONMENTAL CONSIDERATIONS: None. 

FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS:  None. 

ATTACHMENTS:  
 Exhibit A – Ordinance No. 2019-XX (updating original Ordinance No. 2018-10) 

                               

http://www.nevadacityca.gov/


ORDINANCE NO. 2019-XX 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF NEVADA CITY DELETING SUBSECTION B.4 OF SECTION 
9.22.120 OF CHAPTER 9.22 RELATING TO LABELING OF PRODUCTS OF CANNABIS 

MANUFACTURING BUSINESSES 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council passed and adopted Ordinance No. 2018-10 on December 12, 
2018, comprehensively re-enacting Chapter 9.22 to allow adult use cannabis businesses in addition to 
the medical-only businesses previously allowed; and 
 

WHEREAS, as adopted Section 9.22.120 – Additional Requirements for Cannabis 
Manufacturing Businesses carried forward a packaging and labeling requirement in subsection B.4 that 
“A warning that the item is a medication and not a food must be clearly legible on the front of the 
package.” and 

 
WHEREAS, that restriction is no longer necessary after the medical-only restriction on cannabis 

businesses has been removed. 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Nevada City as follows: 

 
SECTION I: 
Subsection B.4 of Section 9.22.120 of Chapter 9.22 of the Nevada City Municipal Code is hereby 
repealed and deleted.  
 
SECTION II: 
In all other respects Chapter 9.22 shall remain unchanged and in full force and effect, currently 
excluding any cultivation except for personal medical cannabis cultivation allowed in Chapter 17.140. 
 
SECTION III:  
This Ordinance shall become effective 30 days after its final adoption and a copy of this ordinance shall 
be published in The Union, a newspaper of general circulation, within fifteen (15) days of the date of its 
passage. 
 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED this ___ day of __________, 2019 by the following vote: 
 
 
AYES:   
 
NOES:   
 
ABSENT:  
 
ABSTAIN:  
                ________________________________ 
      David Parker, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
________________________________ 
Niel Locke, City Clerk 


	1 REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING - 01.01.19
	WEDNESDAY, JANUARY 9, 2019
	PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

	3A-1 SR Accounts Payable Activity Report - December 2018
	3A-2 Accounts Payabel Activity Report-December 2018
	3B-1 SR  01-09-19 Side Letter #1 Local 3800
	3B-2 Side letter-LOCAL 3800
	City of Nevada City
	side letter No. 1 to Memorandum of Understanding

	4A-1 Minutes - December 12, 2018
	PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
	4.     APPROVAL OF ACTION MINUTES:

	5A-1 SR Vegetation Management Prescriptive Grazing
	5A-2 Maps for Prescriptive Grazing and Volunteer Vegetation Management
	5A-3 Goat Fund Me
	5A-4 Quote Legacy Ranching
	5A-5 Quote The Goat Works
	5A-6 Quote NM Rancher
	5B-1 SR P&R Consolidation Feasbility Study
	5B-2 Attach P&R Consolidation mtg 8-7-18
	5B-3 Attach P&R Consolidation mtg 9-17-18
	5B-4 Attach P&R Consolidation Summary
	Park District Consolidation Feasibility Study
	Data Needs
	Park Inventory Data
	Staffing and Budget
	Programming



	5C-1 SR 01.09.19 Sugarloaf Trail Update
	BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION:
	At the May 10, 2017 meeting, Council approved a conceptual trail alignment for the Sugarloaf Trail as proposed by the Bear Yuba Land Trust.  Since the conceptual approval, staff and the Land Trust have worked with consultants to prepare several specia...
	The webpage also contains an updated project description and the most recent trail construction plans as prepared by City Engineer, Bryan McAlister. With the above information compiled, staff was able to send out a notice of distribution and request f...

	5C-2 Sugarloaf Trail ATT 2 -Caltrans Response
	5C-3 Sugarloaf Trail- ATT1-Disribution Notice-updated
	NEVADA CITY PLANNING DEPARTMENT
	317 Broad Street
	Nevada City CA 95959
	INITIAL DISTRIBUTION / PROJECT DESCRIPTION
	This project is being distributed to you for your review and comment. Your comments and/or conditions must be received, in writing, no later than Friday, January 18, 2019.  Please e-mail a digital copy to the City Planner. If you need additional infor...
	PLEASE NOTE: The following supplemental documents are available on the Planning Department page of the Nevada City website at NevadaCityCA.gov under the “current projects” heading. This list will be updated as maps and studies are revised or added for...
	Please contact the Planner below if you would like hard copies of the plans or of any of the supplemental material.
	APNs:  005-310-009, 005-310-010, 036-020-026
	(530) 265-1496 x130   Email: amy.wolfson@nevadacityca.gov

	5C-4 Sugarloaf Trail Connection - Impr Plans 2018-11-14
	C1 Sugarloaf- Overall Siteplan
	C2 Sugarloaf- Siteplan
	C3 Sugarloaf- Enlarged Siteplan
	C4 Sugarloaf- Details

	7A-1 SR 01.09.19 Volitile Extraction
	7B-1 SR 01.09.19 Panhandling
	7B-2Ord 2019-XX  Unlawful panhandlingfinal
	7C-1 SR 1-9-19 - Designated Smoking Areas
	7C-2 exhibit smoking rev3
	7D-1 SR 01.09.19 repeal
	7D-2 Ord 2019-XX Cannabis labeling



